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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT bl
To the Members of PICL India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PICL India Private Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. The Director report is not
made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
5 0 \ (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
WOH as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
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with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
_ We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
"g:m requ1rements regarding mdependence and to communicate with them all relatlonshlps and other matters that may
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Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on May 12, 2022.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(®

(8)

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this
report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 37 to the financial statements;
ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  a) The management has represented thal, o the best ol its knowledge and beliel, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
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vi.

sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants :
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 30 1003E/E300005

S A=

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766

UDIN: 23096766BGYHTO02956

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2023
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: PICL (India) Private Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that:

(i)(a)A)

(B)
(b)

(©)
(d)

(e)

(i)(a)

(b)

(iii)(a)

(b)

(c)

@

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and
no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2023.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed.

As disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of INR five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of
current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of
the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are
in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. The Company do not have sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in aggregate from financial institutions during the
year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companics, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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®

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

(®)

(viii)

(ix)(a)

(b)

(c)
)

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules
made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of electric motors, and are of the opinion that prima
facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the same

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have
not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where

statute dues (Rs. lakhs) paid which amount dispute is

under relates pending

Protest
(Rs. lakhs)

Income tax Income tax 0.79 Nil 2018-19 Commissioner
Act, 1961 of Income tax

(Appeals),

Delhi

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement
lo report on clause 3(ix)(e) ol the Order is nol applicable (o the Company.
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(x)(a)

(b)

(xi)(a)

(b)

(©)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)(a)
(b)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(x)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not
incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
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(xx)(a)

(b)

accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Qe

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766

UDIN: 23096766BGYHTO2956

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2023
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Annexure ‘2’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date of the financial statements of PICL India
Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of PICL India Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
exlernal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
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preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts

and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
réference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 30 1003E/E300005

w./

=

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 096766

UDIN: 23096766BGYHTO2956

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2023



PICL (India) Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible asscts
Intangible assets under development
IYinancial assets

Other financial asscts
Income tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventorics

Financial assets
"I'rade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Other financial assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Hquity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilitics
Borrowings

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
Borrowings
‘I'rade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b) 'Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilitics
Provisions
Income tax liabilitics (net)
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

Notes
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20
21
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As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
12,564.00 5,126.57
195.02 5,269.43
1,010.98 921.36
754.40 551.53
32.41 14.67
475.80 163.19
259.79 654.78
15,292.40 12,701.53
2,690.81 2,947.38
5,091.25 4,643.81
304.94 1,641.72
881.42 386.73
17.24 47.49
870.72 1,356.52
9,856.38 11,023.65
25,148.78 23,725.18
364.21 364.21
4,017.79 2,411.89
4,382.00 2,776.10
6,990.63 9,922.06
124.99 106.20
217.83 119.96
7,333.45 10,148.22
2,067.76 1,386.26

1,831.61 ;
8,585.08 6,378.07
409.33 619.33
129.37 2,264.06
6.60 5.54
403.58 147.60
13,433.33 10,800.86
20,766.78 20,949.08
25,148.78 23,725.18

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

[CAI Figm Registratign Number : 301 i/ 12300005

pet Vishal Sharma
Membership Number : 096766

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2023

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2023

'or and on behalf of Board of Dircctors of
CL (India) Private Limited

Partner Director
DIN No.: 02023964

ffector
DIN: 00259632

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2023

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2023

8@%

Divya
Company Sceretary
Membership Number: A70524




PICL (India) Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Income
Revenue from operations 28 30,709.09 23,580.44
Other income 29 157.94 86.67
Total income 30,867.03 23,673.11
Expenses
Cost of raw matcrials consumed 30 22,591.41 18,341.03
Changes in inventories of finished goods and intermediate products- 3 (64.26) (395.73)
limployce benefits expense 32 1,038.66 770.99
Finance costs 33 878.73 506.77
Depreciation and amottisation expense 34 924.46 624.83
Other expenses 35 3,448.13 2,638.50
Total expense 28,817.13 22,486.39
Profit before tax 2,049.90 1,186.72
Tax expense

Current tax 39 452.29 147.60

Deferred tax charge 39 97.40 152.17
Profit for the year 1,500.21 886.95
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit obligations 1.87 6.30
Income tax relating to these items (0.47) (1.58)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1.40 4.72
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,501.61 891.67
Earning per equity share
(Nominal value of equity share INR 10 each)

Basic and diluted (INR) 36 41.19 24.35
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants PICL (India) Private Limited D
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 30100313/1:300005 7 ) 9
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PICL (India) Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,049.90 1,186.72
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 924.46 624.83
Interest income (28.69) (16.48)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (10.40) (17.34)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 228.99 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and cquipment (net) 225 1.89
Loss on account of unapproved product development 125.11 229.86
Share based payment expenses 104.29 -
Impairment of trade receivables - 3.84
Bad dcbts 8.90 18.72
Balances written off 23.39 4.26
Liabilitics no longer required written back (6.32) (4.85)
Finance costs 878.73 506.50
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) in trade receivables (472.34) (1,561.43)
Decrease/ (increase) in inventorics 256.57 (1,117.69)
Decrease/ (increase) non-financial asscts 487.74 (919.90)
Decrease in financial assets 12,52 6.49
Increase in trade payables 4,041.64 1,916.22
Increase in provisions 19.85 6.07
(Decrease) /increase in non-financial habilities (2,134.69) 2,196.96
Increase/(decrease) in financial labilities 42.54 (989.12)
Cash generated from operations 6,554.44 2,075.55
Income tax paid (net) (508.45) (94.62)
Net cash flows from operating activities A 6,045.99 1,980.93
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress, intangible asscts (3,726.36) (6,199.25)
and intangible assets under development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and cquipment 6.02 2.88
Movement in bank deposits {479.17) (11.18)
Interest received on bank deposits 13.16 13.88
Net cash flows used in investing activities B (4,186.35) (6,193.67)
C Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (nct) 587.33 246.42
Proceeds from long term borrowings 4,258.67 5,876.02
Repayment of long term borrowings (7,099.69) (297.02)
Finance costs paid (942.73) (468.41)
Net cash (used)/flows from financing activities C (3,196.42) 5,357.01
D Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) (1,336.78) 1,144.27
E Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 1,641.72 497.45
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year (D+E) {refer note 13} 304.94 1,641.72

(This space bas been intentionally left blantk)
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PICL (India) Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)
a. Cash and Cash Equivalents include:

Balances with banks:
- in current and cash credit accounts

Cash in hand
Cash and cash equivalents

Summary of significant accounting policies

[§8]

For the year ended

For the year ended

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

[CAI Firm l(cg‘istmtion Number : 3010 i/ 15300005
N\MN.&\“"‘/

per Vishal Sharma
Partner

Membership Number : 096766

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2023

Dircctor
DIN No.: 02023964

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2023

For aud on behall uf Duad of Ditectors of
PICL (India) Private Limited

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
304.94 1,641.72
304.94 1,641.72
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PICL (India) Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

No. of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 3,642,100.00 364.21
Changes in cquity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,642,100.00 364.21
Changes in cquity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,642,100.00 364.21
B Other equity
Reserves and surplus (refer note 18)
Particulars Employee stock
Securities premium General reserve option outstanding | Retained earnings Total
Account
Balance as at 01 April 2021 0.05 54.48 - 1,465.69 1,520.22
Profit for the year - - - 886.95 886.95
Remeasurement gain of defined benefit obligations (net of tax) . - - 472 4.72
Dulance as ut 01 April 2022 0.03 54.48 - 2,357.36 2,411.89
Profit for the year - - - 1,500.21 1,500.21
Share based payment expenses (refer note 48) - - 104.29 - 104.29
Remeasurement gain of defined benefit obligations (net of tax) - - - 1.40 1.40
Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.05 54.48 104.29 3,858.97 4,017.79
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

[CAI Firm Registration Number : 3010031

ptﬂsha[ Sharma

Partner

LLP

/

Membership Number : 096766

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2023
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FFor and on behalf of Board of Directors of

PICL (India) Private Limited )

Director
DIN No.: 02023964

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2023

asbir8ingh
Director
DIN: 00259632

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2023

) Divya

Company Secretary

Membership Number: A70524

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2023




PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

1.

2.2

o
o o
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Corporate information

The financial statements comprise financial statements of PICL (India) Private Limited (CIN:
U74899DL1994PTC061471) (the company) for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Company is a
deemed public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Second Floor,
Khasra No. 367, 100 Foote Road, Village Ghitorni, South West, South Delhi, New Delhi-110030.

The Company is principally engaged in the production of electric motors.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
15 May 2023.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1II), as applicable to the Financial Statements.

"The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:
e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding

financial instruments)

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR
00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a

going concern.
Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on curtent/non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

® Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

A liability is current when:
e [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
® It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
® There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign cutrencies
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s at its functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the
Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional

currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the

Statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i..,
translation differences on items whose fait value gain ot loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are
also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).




PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

C.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

® In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
e [Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above.




PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.
¢ Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (notes 3, 44 and 45)
e Tinancial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (notes 8, 12, 13, 14, 15, 19, 22,
23, 24, 44 and 45)

d. Revenue from contract with customer
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before

transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue

from contracts with customers are provided in Note 3.

Sale of products
Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the products. The normal credit term is 7 to 90 days upon

delivery.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measutred at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of
goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various schemes offered

by the Company as part of the contract

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the
sale of products provide customers with a right of return and rebates. The rights of return and rebates

give rise to variable consideration.

e Rights of return

‘The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the variable consideration given the
large number of contracts that have similar characteristics. The Company then applies the
requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price. A refund liability
is recognized for the goods that are expected to be returned (i.e., the amount not included in the
transaction price). A right of return asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also
recognised for the right to recover the goods from a customer.




PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

e Rebates

The Company applies the most likely amount method or the expected value method to estimate
the variable consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the amount of
variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of thresholds contained in the contract.
The most likely amount is used for those contracts with a single threshold, while the expected
value method is used for those with more than one threshold. The Company then applies the
requirements on constraining estimates in order to determine the amount of variable
consideration that can be included in the transaction price and recognised as revenue. A refund
liability is recognised for the expected future rebates (i.e., the amount not included in the
transaction price).

Other revenue streams

Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in “other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest income on fixed deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other

income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Export incentives benefit

Export benefit income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, when the right to receive the
benefits amount is established as per the terms of the relevant scheme and where there is no significant
uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from sale of products because the receipt of
consideration is conditional on successful transfer of the completion of performance obligation. Upon
completion of petformance obligation and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as

contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment.




PICL (India) Ptivate Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Trade receivables
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial

assets in section (o) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received-or a payment is due (whichever is eatlier) from
a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the

related goods or services to the customer).
Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return

Right of return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods expected to be returned by
customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in value. The Company updates the
measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any

additional decreases in the value of the returned products.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received
(or receivable) from the customer. The Company’s refund liabilities arise from customers’ right of
return and rebates. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding
change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received,
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in

equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair
value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption
of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance
are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable
market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or
assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as
the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is
subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.



PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

f.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted ot substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates

and generates taxable income.

Cutrent income tax telating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Cutrent tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are

subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or lability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the catry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.



PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Sales/ value added taxes/ Goods and Services Tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring
expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Sales/ value added taxes/Goods and Service
Tax taxes paid, except:
e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item, as applicable

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of

receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Plant and
equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for
long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Block of asset Useful life as per Companies Act, 2013 (in

years)

Building 30

Plant and machinery 8-15

Computer 3 -

Vehicles 8

Furniture and fixture 10

Office equipment 10




PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Company reviews the estimated residual values and expected useful lives of assets at least annually.
In particular, the Company considers the impact of health, safety and environmental legislation in its

assessment of expected useful lives and estimated residual values.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and ate treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and

loss unless such expenditure forms part of cartying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
catrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is

derecognised.
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PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of

profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

e The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for

use or sale

e Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

e How the asset will generate future economic benefits

e The availability of resources to complete the asset

e The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins
when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of
expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. During the period of development, the

asset is tested for impairment annually.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is, as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method Internally generated
used or acquired
Computer software Finite (6 yeats) | Amortised on a straight-line Acquired
basis over the period of the
asset
Development costs Finite (7 years) | Amortised on a straight-line Internally generated

basis over the period of
expected future sales from
the related project

Patent and trademark | Finite (10 years) | Amortised on a straight-line Acquired
basis over the period of the

asset

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.
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Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding

in respect of the lease.

j- Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:
® Raw materials and packing materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in,
first out basis.
e Finished goods and intermediate products: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and
a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs

of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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k.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
tecoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is

written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded

companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a petiod of five years. For longer petiods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash
flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent
years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Company
opetates, ot for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss, except for propetties previously revalued with the revaluation sutplus taken to OCI. For such
properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

The impairment assessment for all assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.
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L.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of

profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the

increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet
date.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the
extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit
credit method.
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Remeasurements, comprising of actuatial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
® The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

® The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the

statement of profit and loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and

e Netinterest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The Company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an

employee renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.
The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-
settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves
in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
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date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the
statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is

satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant
date fair value of the unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An
additional expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of
the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the
accounting policies in section (d) Revenue from contracts with customers.
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In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair

value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,

the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Debt instruments at amortised cost
e Debt Instrument at Fair Value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
e Debt Instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Equity Instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amottised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of
profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to trade receivables, security deposits and other receivables. For more
information on receivables, refer note 8, 12 and 15.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

Pt T e
",r/’:) . ““""‘;‘\.v".\ e g AP ‘ 1 \""

'r Lvu,_,_u.\‘(? N (A’ Sl SN

F/8 e ~G ki S

oo e, X

ff Lo / 4 A\ Y

O { f \ 7

LR ! /

B\ (e f

l_‘\ (‘\,\ J ~ .I"
NG I \ Arn'/
"C;\qi‘d * Y -’rf,. '/

ureeed



PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest.

Debt instruments included within the FVT'OCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the Profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Profit and loss. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVIPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
ctitetia for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVIPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FV'IPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has designated, forward exchange contracts taken by the Company to mitigate the foreign
exchange risk, as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL categoty ate measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FV'IPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The

classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may

transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset ot part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. temoved from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

® The rights to teceive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
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e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is requited for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
ot loss, loans and borrowings or as payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized
in OCL. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial Liability

as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
botrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit ot loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.




PICL (India) Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

This categoty generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 19 and 22.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or

losses) or interest.

The following table shows vatious reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original classification | Revised classification | Accounting treatment

Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortized cost
and fair value is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated
based on the new gross carrying amount
Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost
and fair value is recognised in OCIL No
change in EIR due to reclassification
FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new amortised cost carrying amount.
However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the
asset is measured as if it had always been
measured at amortised cost
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FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new catrying amount. No other adjustment is
required

FVTOCI FVIPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI is reclassified to Statement of Profit
and Loss at the reclassification date

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known

amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other botrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an

adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shates)
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in

resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards
The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified
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Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022, to amend
the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2022.

a. Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37
An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable of meeting the obligations under
the contract costs (i.e., the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) exceed

the economic benefits expected to be received under it.

The amendments specify that when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, an entity
needs to include costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services including both
incremental costs (e.g., the costs of direct labour and materials) and an allocation of costs directly
related to contract activities (e.g., depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract and costs of
contract management and supervision). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the

contract.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there were no
Onerous Contracts entered by the Company within the scope of these amendments that arose

during the period.

b. Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103
The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAI’s “Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements under Indian Accounting Standards” with the reference to the
“Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard” without
significantly changing its requirements.

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business
Combinations to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, if incurred separately. The exception
requires entities to apply the criteria in Ind AS 37 or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, respectively,
instead of the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether a present obligation exists at the

acquisition date.

‘The amendments also add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendments prospectively,
i.e., to business combinations occurring after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application).

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there were no
contingent assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities within the scope of these amendments that arose
during the period.
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c. Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to Ind AS 16
The amendments modified paragraph 17(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds
of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but
deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant,

and equipment.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022.
These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there were no
sales of such items produced by property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after

the beginning of the earliest period presented.

d. Ind AS 109 Financial Insttuments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of
financial liabilities
The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the botrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the entity first applies the amendment (the date of initial application). These amendments had
no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there were no modifications of the

Company’s financial instruments during the period.

e. Ind AS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements
The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of Ind AS 41 that entities exclude cash
flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of Ind AS 41.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022. The
amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it did not have assets
in scope of IAS 41 as at the reporting date.

2.4 Standards notified but not yet effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April
2023.

a. Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use

measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after
the start of that period.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

. Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities

apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to Ind AS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023.
Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107.

The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure

consistency with the amended requirements.

Defetred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction -
Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it
no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the
eatliest comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative
petiod presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with leases and decommissioning obligations. Consequential amendments have been
made in Ind AS 101. The amendments to Ind AS 12 are applicable for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2023.

The Company is cutrently assessing the impact of the amendments.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the

accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these

assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying

amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements:

R
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Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the

amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of goods include a right of return and rebates that give rise to variable
consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is tequired to use the most
appropriate method based on which Company can predict the amount of consideration to which it will
be entitled.

The Company determined that the expected value method is the most appropriate method to use in
estimating the variable consideration for the sale of goods with rights of return, given the large number

of customer contracts that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers
whether the amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the
estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on its historical experience, business
forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration

will be resolved within a short time frame.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concetning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a Black Scholes
Options Pricing model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model,
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination
of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up to the date of
settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss. This requires a reassessment
of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period. The assumptions and models used for
estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 48.
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions ate reviewed at each reporting date.

‘The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the country. Those mortality tables
tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 43.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
See Note 44 and 45 for further disclosures.

Revenue recognition - Estimating variable consideration for returns and rebates

The Company estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of
goods with rights of return and rebates. The Company developed a statistical model for forecasting
sales returns. The model used the historical return data of each product to come up with expected
return percentages. These percentages are applied to determine the expected value of the variable
consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compated to historical return pattern will impact

the expected return percentages estimated by the Company.

The Company’s expected rebates are analysed on a per customer basis for contracts that are subject to
a single threshold. Determining whether a customer will be likely entitled to rebate will depend on the

customer’s historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to date.

The Company applied a statistical model for estimating expected rebates for contracts with more than
one threshold. The model uses the historical purchasing patterns and rebates entitlement of customers
to determine the expected rebate percentages and the expected value of the variable consideration. Any
significant changes in experience as compared to historical purchasing patterns and rebate entitlements
of customers will impact the expected rebate percentages estimated by the Company.
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The Company updates its assessment of expected returns and rebates quarterly and the refund liabilities
are adjusted accordingly. Estimates of expected returns and rebates are sensitive to changes in
circumstances and the Company’s past experience regarding returns and rebate entitlements may not
be representative of customers’ actual returns and rebate entitlements in the future.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.c., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of
credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate
over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables and contract assets is
disclosed in Note 45.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed
to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested.
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts
to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the
project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
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(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

4. Property, plant and equipment

Cost Land Buildings Plant_and Enraityre & O.fﬁce Vehicles Computers Total
machinery fixtures equipment
Gross Block
As at 01 April 2021 1,771,68 - 4,762.04 190.52 72.24 - 172.93 6,969.41
Additions = - 941.90 L6 0.65 - 35.50 979.65
Disposals . : (17.93) (32.30) (1.27) - (5.09) (36.78)
As at 31 March 2022 1,771.68 - 5,686.01 159.62 71.62 - 203.34 7,892.28
Additions - 6,666.13 1,374.99 107.14 66.92 133 154,28 8,370.80
Disposals - - (996.05) (90.93) (28.68) - (74.53) (1,190.19)
As at 31 March 2023 1,771.68 6,666.13 6,064.95 175.84 109.86 133 283.10 15,072.88
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2021 - - 2,064.36 129.60 44.92 - 135.09 2,373.97
Charge for the year 41213 9.02 3.88 - 18.72 H3.75
Disposals - (13.16) (32.50) (1.27) - (.09 (32.01)
As at 31 March 2022 - - 2,463.33 106.12 41.53 - 148.72 2,765.71
Charge for the year - 152.30 466.87 15.47 6.30 0.15 55.01 696.10
Disposals - - (780.09) (76.47) (25.57) - (70.80) (952.93)
As at 31 March 2023 - 152.30 2,150.10 45,12 28.27 0.15 132.93 2,508.88
Net block as at 31 March 2022 1,771.68 - 3,222.68 53.50 24.09 - 54.62 5,126.57
Net block as at 31 March 2023 1,771.68 6,513.83 3,914.84 130.72 81.59 118 150.17 12,564.00

(i) Contractual obligations

Refer note 37(ii) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plnt and equipment.

(i) Title deeds of all immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(ii1) During the year, there was an impairment loss on property, plant and equipment amounting to INR 228.99 lakh (31 March 2022: INR Nil lakh) pertaining to plnt

and equipment.

(iv) On transition to Ind AS (i.e. 01 April 2016), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all Property, plant and equipment measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of Property, plant and equipment.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

5. Capital work-in-progress

Plant and machineries under installation 193.02 156.30

Construction of manufacturing unit - 5,113.13

195.02 5,269.43
Notes:
(1) ‘The borrowing cost capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2023 amounts to [NR 76.48 lakh (31 March 2022: INR 270.32 lakh).
(ii) Movement in capital work in progress:
Particulars Amount
Capital work-in-progress as at 01 April 2021 919.20
Add: additions durning the year 4,935.30
Less: capitalisation during the year (585.07)
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2022 5,269.43
Add: additions during the year 2,010.29
Less: capitalisation during the year (7,084.70)
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2023 195.02
(1) During the year, expenses aggregating to INR 0.89 lakh (31 March 2022: INR 274.65 lakh), net off sceap income have been capitalised under capital work-in-
progress. The aforesaid expenses comprises of rw material consumption, personnel costs, power and fuel charges and other related expenses.
(iv) Ageing schedule of capital work-in-progress:
31 March 2023 Less than 1 1-2years | 2-3years | More than 3 Total
year years
Plant and machineries under installation 195.02 - - 195.02
Construction of manufacturing unit - = - -
Total 195.02 - - - 195.02
31 March 2022 Less than 1 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 Total
year years

Plant and machineries under installation 156.30 - - - 156.30
Construction of manufacturing unit 4,390.51 722.62 - 5,113.13
Total 4,546.81 722.62 - - 5,269.43

Capital work in progress (CWTP) as at 31 March 2023 comprises expenditure for the plant and building in the course of construction.

There are no projects that are temporarily suspended. Further, there are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan,
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6. Intangible assets

Cost Shfewates Patent and Development Total intangible
trademark costs assets

Gross block

As at 01 April 2021 180.46 30.00 1,197.32 1,407.78
Additions 36.91 - 445.00 481.91
As at 31 March 2022 217.37 30.00 1,642.33 1,889.69
Additions 37.25 - 280.73 317.98
As at 31 March 2023 254.62 30.00 1,923.05 2,207.67
Accumulated amortisation

As at 01 April 2021 140.71 30.00 616.54 787.25
Charge for the year 9.91 - 171.17 181.08
As at 31 March 2022 150.62 30.00 787.71 968.33
Charge for the year 15.43 = 212.94 228.36
As at 31 March 2023 166.05 30.00 1,000.65 1,196.69
Net block as at 31 March 2022 66.75 - 854.62 921.36
Net block as at 31 March 2023 88.57 - 922.41 1,010.98

Intangible asscts as at 31 March 2023 comprises of software, patent and trademark and various prodouct development charges.

On transition to Ind AS (i.c. 1 April 2016), the Company has clected to continue with the carrying value of all Intangible assets measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of Intangible assets.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

7. Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets under development 754.40 551.53
754.40 551.53

Notes:
(i) Movement in intangible assets under development:
Particulars Amount
Intangible assets under development as at 01 April 2021 710.47
Add: additions during the year 515.92
Less: capitalisation during the year (445.00)
Less: loss on account of unapproved product development (229.86)
Intangible assets under development as at 31 March 2022 551.53
Add: additions during the year 608.71
Less: capitalisation during the year (280.73)
chhh. ll)hh L accounl IJr ullill]l,ll)\'cd 'l]l‘]i]LlLl dc\'c]lli,[lll}l]l (1251 1)
Intangible assets under development as at 31 March 2023 754.40

(i1) During the year, expenses aggregating to INR 608.71 lakh (31 March 2022: INR 515.92 lakh), net off scrap income have been capitalised under intangible assets
under development. The aforesaid expenses comprises of raw material consumption, personnel costs, power and fuel charges and other related expenses.

For.the year For the year ended

Particulars ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Purchase 175.32 77.59
Employee benefit expense 338.79 294.92
Job work charges 3.53 39.65
‘Travelling and conveyance expense 11.80 247
Miscellaneous expenses 79.27 101.29
Total 608.71 515.92

(iii) Intangible assets under development aging schedule:

31 March 2023 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of
; h: Total
Particulars hoeei thean 4 1-2 years 2-3 years Mace:than 3
year years
Product development in progress 454.95 234.96 64.49 - 754.40
31 March 2022 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of
2 Total
Particulars Less than 1 L2 yeiis 23 years More than 3 ota
year years
Product development in progress 352.19 194.99 4.35 - 551.53

(iv) There are no projects that are temporarily suspended. Further, there are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its
original plan.

(v) Intangible assets under development as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 comprises expenditure for product development projects. These expenditures

relate to the vargusprojects undertaken by the Company.
£

(Vhis space has been intentionatly left blank)
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o

0]
(i)

(i)
(iv)
®

(v1)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Other financial assets (i d, idered good)

Secunty deposits 141 14.67
3241 14.67

ets measured ar amortised cost and note 43 - Fiancial tisk management for assessment of expecred credit losses.

Refer note 4+ - Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fur value i respect of financial

Income tax assets (net)
Income tax assets 47380 163.19
475.80 163.19

Other non-current assets (unsecored, considerd good)

Capiral advances 258.48 631.52
Balance with statutory authonnes - 150
Prepaid expenses 1.31 1.76
259.79 654.78
Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)
Raw matenals
-in hand 1,421.62 1,926.38
- i teansit 194.60 10.67
Intermediate products 836.50 72256
Finished goods
-in hand 184.606 213.40
- 10 teansit 53.43 7437
2,690.81 2,947.38
Ducing the year ended 31 Maech 2023, INR Nil lakh (31 Macch 2022: INR Nil lakh) was recognised as an expense for mventones caraed at net realisable value.
Trade receivables
I'rade receivables +877.53 445223
Recavables from related pachies (refer note 38) 213.72 191.38
5,091.25 4,643.81
Break-up for security details:
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 5,091.25 404381
Irade Receivables - credit impaiced 13.48 1348
5,104.73 4,657.29
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
T'rade Receivables - credit impaired (13.48) (13.48)
5,091.25 4,643.81

Notes:

Refer note 45 - Financial nsk management for assessment of expected credir losses.

No teade or other reccivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any teade or other receivable are due from firms or private companics
respectively in which any director is a parmer, a director or a member other than mentioned i note 38.

For terms and conditions relating to relared party recevables, refer note 38

Trade recevables are non-interest beanng and ace generally on rerms of 7 days to 90 days.

There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same 1s not disclosed in the ageing schedule.

Ageing schedule of wade receivables: 2

31 March 2023 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than6 | 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
months year
Indisputed trade receivables — considered good 3.233.70 1,696.37 106.63 40.23 419 10.13 5,091.25
L ited Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - 13.48 13.48
Total 3,233.70 1,696.37 106.63 40.23 4.19 23.61 5,104.73
31 March 2022 Qutstanding from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than6 | 6 months -1 L-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
months
Undisputed trade recervables — considered good 2,813.50 1,804.08 0.01 350 - 4,643.81
sputed Trade Receivables — credit impaiced - - - - 13.48 1348
Total 2,813.50 1,804.08 0.01 3.50 13.48 4,657.29

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
in current and cash credit accounts 304.94 1,641.72
in hand

304.94 1,641.72

Other bank balances

Deposits wath remaining matunty of less than twelve months 881.42 386.73
881,42 386.73

Notes:

Bank deposits which are under restriction:

Fixed deposits with banks held as macgin money for letter of credits, bank guarantees, working capital facilities and buyers credit facilines 881.42 380.73

Other financial assets (current) (unsecured, considerd good)

Other reccivable 002 1.79

Secunty deposits 17.22 45.70

17.24 47.49

“The carryng values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair values.

Other current assets (unsecured, considerd good)

Advances to suppliers (refer note 38) 16.67

Balances with statutory authorities 71425

Staff advances 11.74

98.06
870.72
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As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

17 Equity share capital
Authorised share capital

5,000,000 (31 Mareh 2022: 5,000,000) Equity shares of INR 10 each 300.00 500.00
500.00 500.00
Issued, subscribed capital and fully paid up
3,642,100 (31 March 2022: 3,642,100) Equity shares of INR 10 cach 364.21 36421
364.21 364.21
(i) Terms/rights auached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 cach. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, holders of equ v of the remaining assets of the Company, after distnbution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

shares will be entitled to receive a

(ii) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No. of shares (INR lakh) No. of shares (INR lakh)
Equity share capital of INR 10 each fully paid up
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,642,100 364.21 3,642,100 364.21
Balance at the end of the year 3,642,100 364.21 3,642,100.00 364.21
(iii) Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company as at balance sheet date
As on 31 March 2023 As on 31 March 2022
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Amber Enterprises India Linited 3,642,000 99.997%% 3,642,000 99.997%
(iv) Shares held by holding company:
Out of cquity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its Holding Company are as below:
As on 31 March 2023 As on 31 March 2022
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Amber Enterprises India Limited 3,642,000 99.997% 3,642,000 99.997%
v) Derails of promoter shareholding
Name of promoter 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of % oftotal % change during  Number of % of total shares % change during
shares shares the period shares the period
Amber Enterpases India Limited 3,642,000 99.997% 0.00% 3,642,000 99.997°%% 0.00%
vi) No equity shares had been issued as bonus, for consideration other than cash and bought back during the period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting date.
18  Other equity As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

General reserve

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 54.48 54.48
Securities premium

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 0.05 0.05
Employee stock option outstanding Account

Balance at the beginning of the year 2

Share based payment expenses (refer note 48) 104.29

Balance at the end of the year 104.29 -
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance ar the beginning of the year 2,357.36 1,465.69

Add : Profit for the year 1,500.21 886.93

Add : Other comprehensive income:

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of 1ax) 140 +72

Balance at the end of the year 3,858.97 2,357.36

Total other equity 4,017.79 2,411.89

Nature and purpose of other equity

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual tansfer of net income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable
regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year,
then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily
transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in
accordance with the specific cequirements of Companies Act, 2013.

Securities premium
Sccurities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The securities premium is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

Employee stock option outstanding account
The Employee stock options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 issued
by Amber Enterprises India Limited, the Holding Company.

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to

sharchoklers. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.
i

(This sputie has been intentianall bt blanks)
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@
@

(b

(d

(e

(ii)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Borrowings (non-current)

Secured

Term loan from banks [refer note (1)] 6,513.73 +219.06

Unsecured

Loan from related parties (refer note 38) 476.90 5,703.00
6,990.63 9,922.06

Notes:

Repayment terms and security disclosure for long-term borrowings (including current maturities) outstanding as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Term loan from Yes Bank Limited amounting to [NR Nil (including current maturitics of TNR Nil) {31 March 2022: INR 100.00 lakh (including cuceent maturities of INR 100.00 lakh)} carcying interest
cate @ 9.05"0 p.a. (31 March 2022: 9.05™) is repaid on 11 May 2022

T'erm loan from RBL Bank Limited amounting to INR 3,185.12 (including current maturities of INR 139.26 lakh) {31 March 2022: INR Nil lakh (including curcent maturitics of INR Nil lakh)} carrying
interest rate @ 7.63"% pa. (31 Macch 2022: Nil®s pa.) is repayable in 20 quarterly installments with last instalment payable on 21 October 2028.

Term loan from Axis Bank Limited amounting to INR 3,963.04 lakh (including current matusities of INR 691.8+ lakh) {31 March 2022 INR 4,442,635 lakh (including current maturities of INR 636.92
lakh)} carrying interest rate @ 8.25%s p.a. (31 March 2022: 5.75% pa.) is repayable in 17 quarterly installments with last instalment payable on 01 June 2027.

Working Capital Term loan (GECL) from RBL Bank Limited amounting to INR 433.33 lakh (including current maturitics of INR 216.67 lakh) {31 March 2022: INR 651.00 lakh (including current
maturitics of INR 216.67 lakh} carrying interest rate @ 9.25% p.a. (31 March 2022: 6.71% p.a) is repayable in 24 monthly installments with last instalment payable on 31 March 2025,

As at 31 Macch 2023, above loans (except GECL) are secured by first pari pasu charge on all the present and future current assets of the Company, first pari passu charge on moveable property of the
Company (excluding those which are exclusively hypothecated with other Banks/Financial Institutions), fiest pari passu charge on immovable property, plant and equipment - Plot No.-619, Sector-69,
IMT, Faridabad in the name of the Company . The above loans are also secured by corporate guarantees of Amber Eaterprises India Limited -

GECL Loan are secured by second pari pasu charge on all the present and future current assets of the Company, second pari passu charge on moveable property of the Company (excluding those which
are exclusively hypothecated with other Banks/ Financial [nstitutions), second pari passu charge on immovable property, plant and equipment - Plot No.-619, Sector-69, IMT, Faridabad in the name of the
Company.

As at 31 March 2022, above loans (except GECL) are secured by first paci pasu chasge on all the present and future current assets of the Company, fist pari passu charge on moveable property of the
Company (excluding those which are exclusively hypothecated with other Banks/Financial Institutions), first pari passu charge on immovable property, plant and equipment - Plot No.-619, Secror-69,
IM'L, Faridabad in the name of the Company . The above loans are also secured by corporate guarantees of Amber Eaterprises [ndia Limited .

GICL Loan are secured by second pari pasu charge on all the present and future current assets of the Company, second pari passu charge on moveable property of the Company (excluding those which
are exclusively hypothecated with other Banks/ Financial Institutions), second pari passu charge on immovable property, plant and equipment - Plot No.-619, Sector-69, IMT, Faridabad in the name of the
Company

Unsecured loan from Amber Enterprises India Limited (Folding Company) amounting to INR 476.90 lakh (31 March 2022: INR 2,500.00 lakh) carrying interest rate @ 8.50° pa. (31 March 2022: 5.75%
p-a.) is repayable at the end of 7 years from the date of first disbursement.

Refer aote + - Fair value disclosures for disclosure of fair value in respeet of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost and note 43 - for the maturity profile of financial liabilities

(iii) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

@)

20

Short-term
Long-term borrowings
borrowings (including Total
current maturities)
As at 01 April 2021 5,315.75 166.25 5,482.00
Cash flows:

Proceeds from borrowings 5,876.02 246.42 6,122.44

Repayment of borrowings (297.02) & (297.02)
Non-cash:

Impact of borrowings measured at amortised cost 0.90 - 0.90
As at 31 March 2022 10,895.65 412,67 11,308.32
Cash flows:

Proceeds from borrowings +258.67 587.33 4,846.00

Repayment of borrowings (7,099.69) B (7,099.69)
Non-cash:

Impact of borrowings measured at amortised cost 3.76 - 3.76
As at 31 March 2023 8,058.39 1,000.00 9,058.39

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

Under the terms of the borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply with certain financial covenants including ratio of total liabilities to adjusted tangible net worth < 5.00 (As at 31 March
2023: 7.81). The lender has not changed any terms of the sanction letter basis the compliance with these covenants through the reporting period

Provisions (non-current)
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 88.16 7411
Compensated absences 36.83 32.09
124.99 106.20
For disclosures related to provision for employee benefits, refee note 43 - Employee benefit obligations.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

21

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Property, plant and cquipment impact of difference  between  tax  depreciation  and
e : & 266.22 161.71
depreciation/amortisation charged for the financial ceporting
Deferred tax asset arising on account of:
Expenses allowable in Income tax on payment basis and deposition of Statutory dues .84 38.22
Impairment for trade receivables 3.39 3:39
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost 0.16 0.14
48.39 41.75
Net deferred tax liabilities 217.83 119.96
Notes:
(i) Movement in deferred tax liabilities
iced in oth R ; :
Bt A e saementorprofit | A%
01 April 2022 1 P 31 March 2023
income and loss
Liabilities
2, r o o 1 F differe: o v ee e 5 it
I mpcr.t] ,_pl:mt and -Lqu-Ipl'nf_l'lt |mpa.:t of dlfﬁ.ﬂ.n_cr. betw een tax depreciation and 6L7 . 10451 266.22
depreciation/amortisation charged for the financial reporting
161.71 - 104.51 266.22
Assets
Expenses allowable in Income tax on payment basis and deposition of Statutory dues 3822 (0.47) .09 484
Impairment for trade receivables 339 2 3.39
Financial assets and habilities measured at amortised cost 0.1+ - 0.02 .16
41.75 (047 7.11 48,39
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 119.96 047 97.40 217.83
(ii) Movement in deferred tax liabilities
Particulars As at RC:;’E‘“ il'see:crsiovt: “ s[:::::;i':ios:d::ﬁt A8 et
01 April 2021 e P 31 March 2022
income and loss
Liabilities
), o \ 1 1 < 1 - 1t
I rupgrg,.phnt and Fqu‘upmcnt impact nfdxffcrenFc betw cen tax depreciation and 153.08 . .63 16171
depreciation/amortisation charged for the financial reporting
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost 0.04 - (0.18) (014
153.12 - 8.45 161.57
Assets
Expenses allowable in [ncome tax on payment basts and deposition of Statutory dues 38.36 (1.58) 1.25 38.22
[mpairment for trade ceceivables 243 0.96 3.39
Unabsorbed depreciation 145.93 7 (145.93) -
186.92 (1.58) (143.72) 41.61
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (net) (33.80) 1.58 152.17 119.96
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)
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23

®

(i)
(iii)

Short-term borrowings
Secured
From banks:
Cash credit facility
Working capital demand loan
Current maturities of long-term debts [refer note 19(i)]

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

2.67
1,000.00 410.00
1,067.76 973.59
2,067.76 1,386.26

Terms of repayment for short term borrowing other than current maturities:

(a) Repayment terms and security disclosure for short-term borrowings other than current maturities of long-term debts outstanding as at 31 March 2023:

Working capital demand loan (repayable on respective due dates) are sccured by fiest pari pasu charge on all the present and future current assets of the Company, first pari passu charge on moveable
property, plant and equipment of the Company (excluding those which are exclusively hypothecated with other Banks/Financial Lnstitutions), fiest pari passu charge on immovable property - Plot No.-619,
Sector-69, IMT, Faridabad in the name of the Company. Working capital demand loan (cepayable on respective due dates) are secured by secured by corporate guarantees of Amber Enterprises India
Limited (Holding Company). These facilities carry interest rate of 7.50" p.a.

(b) Repayment terms and security disclosure for short-term borrowings other than current maturities of long-term debts outstanding as at 31 March 2022:

Cash credit facilities (repayable on demand), working capital demand loan (repayable on respective duc dates) arc secured by first pari pasu charge on all the present and future current assets of the
Company, first pari passu charge on moveable property, plant and equipment of the Company (excluding those which are exclusively hypothecated with other Banks/Financial [nstitutions), first pari passu
charge on immovable property - Plot No.-619, Sector-69, IMT, Faridabad in the name of the Company . The loans are also secured by corporate guarmntees of Amber Enterprises India Limited (Holding
Company). These facilitics carry interest rate ranging from 4.35" pa. to 7.00% p.a.

(c) The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets and quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks ace in agreement with the

books of accounts.

Trade payables
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note (i) for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) 1,831.61 =
-total putstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises® 8,583.08 6,378.07
10,416.69 6,378.07
Trade payables 10,329.69 6,359.50
T'rade payables to related parties 87.00 18.57
10,416.69 6,378.07
Ageing schedule of trade payables:
31 March 2023 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 1 year| 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,345.19 486.42 1,831.61
‘T'otal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 4,382.67 4,000.32 1.48 0.27 0.34 8,383.08
enterprises
‘Total 5,927.86 4,486.74 1,48 0.27 0.34 10,416.69
31 March 2022 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 1 year| 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
"Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - : g 5 -
"l'otal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small +,984.72 1,389.30 077 .11 3.17 6,378.07
enterprises
‘Total 4,984.72 1,389.30 0.77 0.11 3.17 6,378.07
Disclosures pursuant to section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enteprises 1,818.00 =
Interest due on above 13.61
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment ) .
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed i .
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006
13.61 -

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further inferest cemaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act 2006

The carrying values ate considered to be reasonable approximation of their fair values.

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 to 90 days.
For terms and conditions with related parties, refer note 38. fi
Fur explaations on the Cotpany’s credit sk management procesacs, eefer note 45, |
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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26

27

Other financial liabilities (Current)

Interest accrued but nor due on borrowing (refer note 38)
Payables for capital goods

Expenses payables

Employee related payables (refee note 38)

"The carrying values are considered to be reasonable approximation of their fair values.

Other current liabilities

Advance from customers (contract liabilities) (refer note 38)
Payable to statutory authorities

Provisions (current)

Pravisinn for employee henefits
Gratuity
Compensated absences

For disclosures related to provision for employee benefits, refer note 43 - Employee benefit obligations.

Income tax liabilities (net)
Provision for tax ( net of adavnce tax and tax deducted at source)

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

2348 87.48
177.17 35423
60.18 7478
L48.50 L0284
409.33 619.33
103.19 2,238.43
26.18 25.63
129.37 2,264.06
+.21 331
2.39 2.03
G0 5.54
H)3.58 147.60
403.58 147.60
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29

30

31

32

33

Revenue from operations

Operating revenue
Sale of products

Other operating revenues
Scrap sales
Iircight subsidy
lixport incentive

Other income

Interest income on:
Bank deposits

Other non-operating income:
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Liabilitics no longer required written back
Miscellancous receipts

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases made during the year
Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Changes in inventories of finished goods and intermediate products

Opening stock
Finished goods
Intermediate products

Closing stock
Finished goods
Intermediate products

Employee benefits expense

Salary, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 43)
Gratuity expense (refer note 43)

Staff welfare expenses

Share based expenses (refer note 48)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

29,012.32 22 428.04
1,653.27 1,078.81
= 20.00
43.50 59.59
30,709.09 23,586.44
28.69 16.48
108.80 65.34
6.32 4.85
14.13 -
157.94 86.67
1,937.05 1,215.09
22,270.58 19,062.99
1,616.22 1,937.05
22,591.41 18,341.03
287.77 114.89
722.56 499.71
1,010.33 614.60
238.09 287.77
836.50 722.56
1,074.59 1,010.33
(64.26) (395.73)
827.40 693.41
47.99 38.76
20.55 18.22
38.43 20.60
104.29 -
1,038.66 770.99

‘T'he Code on Social Sceurity, 2020 (‘Codc’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment henefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified
and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issucd. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it come sinto effect and will record any
related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary assessment, the entity believes the impact of the change will not be

significant

Finance costs

Interest on:
- debt and borrowing
- other

Other borrowing costs

Less: Borrowing costs capitalised [refer note 5(i)]

873.92 628.66
32,57 128.23
4872 20.20

955.21 777.09

(76.48) (270.32)

878.73 506.77

S ORIN
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in INR in lakh unless otherwise stated)

34 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4)

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6)

35 Other expenses
Job work charges
Contractual labour charges
Power and fucl charges
Freight outward
Legal and professional charges [refer note (1))
‘Travelling and conveyance expense
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery
- Buildings
- Others
Insurance
Rent (refer note 42)
- Plant and machinery
- Buildings
Rates and taxes
Donation
Impairment of trade reccivables
Balances written off
Bad debts

Loss on account of unapproved product development

[mpairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)

Security charges

Miscellancous expenses

i) Payments to the auditor:
As auditor:
Audit fee
Limited review
In other capacity:
Reimbursement of expenses
Total

o
LLLTY
oy T

B 8

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
696.10 443,75
228.36 181.08
924.46 624.83
76529 524.52

1,373.59 939.62
185.87 100.26
261.32 183.00

90.99 56.49
23.05 9.60
23.45 37.93
279 3.34
50.41 2117
20.32 16.88
18.96 8.58
47.56 176.42
20.85 2532
0.05 0.11
- 3.84
23.39 4.26
8.90 18.72
125.11 229.86
228.99 -
225 1.89
48.77 44.00
126.22 232.69
3,448.13 2,638.50
9.00 8.50
3.00 4.50
0.37 0.02
12.77 13.02
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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36 Earnings per share (EPS)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Basic 1{PS amounts arc calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equityholders by the weighted average number of Liquity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted LEPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equityholders by the weighted average number of Fiquity shares outstanding during the year plus the
weighted average number of Liquity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the potential dilutive Liquity shares into Lquity shares.

The following refleets the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company:

Number of weighted average equity shares (Nominal value of INR 10 cach)
- Basic

- Diluted

Ifarnings per share- after exceptional items and tax
- Basic
- Diluted

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential instruments as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

37 Contingent liabilities and commitments”®

) Contingent liabilities #
a) Income tax demands
Assessment Year- 2018-19 (refer note 1)

G

=

b) Others
Bonus for financial year 2014-15 (refer note ii)

1,500.21 886,95
3,642,100 3,642,100
3,642,100 3,642,100
41.19 24.35
41.19 24.35
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2021
0.79 0.79
9.78 9.78

() Demand was raised by the Income-tax department for the assessment year 2018-19 on 09 April 2021, for additional income-tax payable by the Company . The Company has filed an

appeal to the CI'T (Appeals), Delhi regarding the same on 06 May 2021.

(i) The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 dated 31 December 2015 (which was made effective from 01 April 2014) revised the thresholds for coverage of employcece eligible for
Bonus and also enhanced the ceiling limits for computation of bonus. However, taking cognizance of the stay granted by various IHigh Courts and based on legal opinion obrained by
the management, the Company has not recognised any differential amount of bonus for the period 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 (INR 9.78 lakh) and accordingly has recognised

the expense as per the amended provisions w.e.f. 01 April 2015 and onwards.

# The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. Based on discussions with the solicitors/ favourable decisions in similar
cases/legal opinions taken by the Company, the management does not expect these claims to succeed and hence, no provision there against is considered necessary.

(ii) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exccuted on capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

(This spave bas been left blank intentionally)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
525.04 417.99
525.04 417.99
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111,

Related party disclosures

In accordance with the requirements of lnd AS 24 ‘Related Parry Disclosures’, names of the related parties, related pacty relationship, transactons and outstanding balances mcludmg commitments where control exits and with whom
transactions have taken place dunng weported penods are:

Relationship with related parties

Holding Company Amber Enterprses India Limited
Entities over which significant influence is exercised by the 11, JIN Electeonics (Indi) Pavate Limited
Company/key management personnel Sidwal Refrigeration Industoes Pavate Limited

Electronics Pavate Limited
Amber Enterprises USA INC.

Key management personnel (KMP) Alr. Daljir Singh (Director)
M. Jashir Sigh (Director)
Ms. Amandeep Kaur (Dircctor)
Divya (Company Sceretary) (Wi 1 February 2023)

Related parties of Key management personnel (KMP) Hitashi Rubber Pot Led. (We . 1 Apnl 2022)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:

Entities over which significant Related parties of key

i 1
l'il:. Particulars Holding Company influence is exercised Keymanogement pemonne management personnel
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
(A) |Transactions made during the year:

)

b)

<)

)

<)

g)

h)

k)

Legal and professional charges
Amber Enterprises India Limired 6745 5 3 : s 3 .

Revenue from operations - Sale of
products

Amber Enterpri
Sidwal Referigeration Industries Pavate Limated

India Limited 8,207.98 5,738.52 = - - -
- c 326 0.78 =

Purchase of goods

Amber Enterprises India Limited 4743 161.97 - =

1L JIN Electronics (India) Pevate Limired “ = 3143 027 &
= 0.30 = 2

Sidwal Referigeration Industries Privare Limired -
& 2044

Hirashi Rubber Pyt. 1

KM remuneration
Salary paid® - - - - 60.36 7140 4 =

*Name of KMP
Mr. Daljit Singh - = = = 316 40.88
Mr. Jashir Singh - - . - 2551 3052 - -
Ms. Divya & S S e 0.69 - - -

Unsecured loan received
Amber Enterprises India Limired 9INLON 3,203.00 - - - -

Repayment of unsecured loan
Ambee Entemprises India Limited 6,126.10 - - - o =

Interest accrued and paid on unsecured loan
tedd 35017 26043 - < - - . .

Amber Entemprises Ind

Reimbursement of expenses
Amber Enterprses USA INC. 1.17

Corporate guarantee taken from Holding Company 5,000.00 2,750.00 = = - - - -
Extinguishment of personal guarantee taken from KMP's

Alr. Jashir Singh - -
Alr. Daljit Singh = = « = =

Extinguishment of corporate guarantee taken from Amber Enterprises

India Limited S00.00 1,130 = = =

(U bis space bas been ket blank tnienteanally)
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The following i were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:

Related parties of key
management personnel

Entities over which significant

: 4 : Key management personnel
influence is exercised t g P

Particulars Holding Company

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

(B) |Balances at year end

a) |Trade receivables
Amber Enterprises India Li 21372 9124 -
stries Povate Limited E = - 034

Sidwal Refengeeation [ndu

b) |[Trade payables
Amber Enterprises India Linmted 39.01 18.57 = = - - - -
v Elecrronics (India) Povare Limited - - 1.39 - =

terprises USA INC - . 117 . = = =
= = - 19.43 -

Hiraslu Rubber Private Limited

c) |Advance from Customer
Ambeedinrerprises India Limired 34.39 2,230.68 - = = 5 - 2

d) |Advance to supplier
Amber Entemprses India Limited g 300,69 = = 2 =

€) |Unsecured loan received (disclosed under long term borrowings)
Amber Enterprises India limited 476.90 5,703.00 2 L = 3 = =

Interest accrued on unsecured loan received (disclosed under current
other financials liabilities)

Amber Enterprses India limited 272 64.36

g) |Corporate guarantee taken*
Amber Enterprses India imited 18,900.00 14,400.00 - - - - -

h) |Salary payable
Me. Daljie Singh - - - = 5 219 3
Me. Jasbic Singh - = . - - 164 =

i) |Post-employment benefits of KMP's
Me. Daljir Singh - B - - 1.35 0.68
Me. Jast wh - - - - 1.03 032 -
Ms. Divva - = - - 0.2 = -

* Guarantees taken by the Company includes corporate guarantee from Holding Company for working capital boreowings and term loans. The onginal sanctioned limits of working capital borrowings and term loans sanctioned by the banks

has been disclosed above.
‘Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions of sale and purchases with relared partics are made on terms equ
as per terms of the conteact with the related parties which is at arm’s length. The net outstanding balances are scttled generally in

tions. The outstanding balances ar the year end of trading activitics are geneeally unsecured. Intecest is charged

lent to those prevailing in arm'’s length 1

There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables other than disclosed above.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2022: INR Nil lakh).

(This spexe bus been left blank intentionally)
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For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

39 Tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are:
Profit or loss section
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 452.29 147.60
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 97.40 152.17
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 549.69 299.77
OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit obligations (0.47) (1.58)
Deferred tax charged to OCI (0.47) (1.58)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023:
Accounting profit before tax 2,049.90 1,186.72
At India’s statutory income tax rate* 515.94 298.69
Non-deductible expenses/non-taxable income 33.75 1.08
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 549.69 299.77
* Domestic tax rate applicable to the Company has been computed as follows
Base tax rate 22% 22%
Surcharge (% of tax) 10% 10%
Cess (% of tax) 4% 4%
Applicable rate 25.17% 25.17%
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Unused tax credits:
Capital losses

During the FY 2020-2021, the Company has not recognised deferred tax of INR 37.52 lakh on unused long term capital losses and INR 88.03 lakh on
unused short term capital losses under the head Capital Gains as the Company is not likely to generate taxable income under the same head in foreseeable
future. These losses will expire in financial year ending 31 March 2029.

Details of assets pledged/hypothecated/mortgaged as security:

The carrying amounts of assets pledged/ hypothecated/mortgaged as security for long-term and short-term borrowings are:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current assets
Inventories 2,690.81 2,947.38
Trade receivables 5,091.25 4,643.81
Cash and cash equivalents 304.94 1,641.72
Other bank balances 881.42 386.73
Other financial assets 17.24 47.49
Other current asscts 870.72 1,356.52
Total current assets pledged/hypothecated as security 9,856.38 11,023.65
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12,564.00 5,126.57
Total assets pledged/mortgaged/hypothecated as security 22,420.38 16,150.22

(1'his space has been feft blank intentionally)
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41 Ratio Analysis and its elements
SI. |Ratio Measurement Numerator Denominator FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 Change Remarks
No. unit
Ratio Ratio
I |Current ratio Times Current asscts Current liabilities 0.73 1.02 (28.11"0)|Note E below
2  |Debt-equity ratio Times Total debt Sharcholder's equity 2.07 4.07 (49.25")|Note I£ below
|Long-term borrowings +
Short-term borrowings|
3 |Debt service coverage Times Earnings available for debt [ Debt service [finance 1.98 2.81 (29.27"w)| Note B below
ratio service cost as per Profit &
[Net Profit after taxes + [ Loss Account + lease
Non-cash operating payments + principal
expenses like depreciation | repayments (other than
and other amortizations + | pre-payments, if any)|
Interest + other
adjustments like loss on sale
of Iixed assets etc.|
4 |Return on equity ratio| Percentage Net Profits after taxes — | Average Sharcholder’s 41.92% 38.06% 10.13%|Note A below
Preference Dividend (if any) Equity
5 |Inventory turnover Times Revenue from operations | Average inventories 10.89 9.87 10.31%|Note A below
ratio ((Opening + Closing
balance) / 2)
6 [Trade receivables Times Revenue from operations Average trade 6.31 6.10 3.37% | Note A below
turnover ratio receivables [(Opening
balance + Closing
balance) / 2]
7 |Trade payables Times Total purchases Average trade payables 2.65 3.52 (24.61%)|Note A below
turnover ratio ((Opening + Closing
balance) / 2)
8 |Net capital turnover Times Revenue from operations Working capital (8.59) 105.87 (108.11%0)|Note E below
ratio |Current assets -
Current liabilities|
9 |Net profit ratio Percentage Net profit after taxes Revenue from 4.89% 3.76% 29.91% [Note C below
operations
10 [Return on capital Percentage Profit before interest and Capital Employed 24.63% 13.30% 85.13%|Note C below
employed taxes (Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Deferred
Tax Liability)
11 [Return on investment| Percentage | Interest from bank deposits [ Weighted time average 5.69% 4.36% 30.40%|Note D below
bank deposits
Notes:
A There is no significant change (25% or more) in FY 2022-23 in comparison to Y 2021-22.
B The reasons for significant change in ratio is due to increase in debt taken by the Company for meeting its capital requirements for expansion of existing facilities and set-up
of new manufacturing units.
C  The increase in ratio is primarily due to increase in the profitability owing to increase in operating revenue in FY 2022-23 in comparison to 'Y 2021-22.
D The increase in ratio is primiarily due to increase in deposits with increase in deposit rates in I7Y 2022-2023 in comparison to 1Y 2021-2022.
E  Decrease in ratio is mainly on account of prepayment of unsecured loan from Holding Company out of surplus funds during the current year.

(This space has been intentionally left blunk)
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42  Leases
Company as a lessee
‘I'he Company has leases for plant and machinery, office premises, factory lands and related facilitics. ‘These are short term lease for period of less than one years and are further
renewable by mutual consent on agreed terms. The Company applics the ‘short-term lease” and ‘lease of low value assets” recognition exemptions for these leases. The lease payments

for such leases for the year amounts to INR 66.52 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 185.00 lakhs).

IFurther, the Company do not have any leases which qualifies the recognition principal of lease liabilitics and Right-of-use assets as set out in the accounting policy.

(This space has been left blawk intentionally)
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43 Employee benefit obligations

A Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans
I'he Company has defined contribution plans. Contributions are made o provident fund in India for employees ar the rare of 12% of L ¢ as per regulanons. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obliganon of the Company is imited ro the amount contributed and 1t has no further
contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan 15 as under:
Particulars For the year | For the year
ended ended
March 312023 | March 312022
Employer's contribution to Provident Fund H73
Emplover’s contnbunion to Emplovee State | 326
Expense recognised during the year 41.99
B Gratuity
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fran o
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuity 421 88.16 351 TN
Total 4.21 88.16 351 74.11
A Disclosure of gratuity
Granity is computed as 15 days salary, for every complered year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on retirement/termination/resignation. The
Gratuity plan 13 governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five y of service is entitled to specific benefie. The level of
benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement/termination/resignation. The Company makes provision of such geatuity asser/liability in
the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried our by an independent acruary.
(i) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:
Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 1492 13.29
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 5.63 193
Net impact on profit (before tax) 20.55 18.22
Actuanal (gain) recognised during the year (1.87) (6.30)
Amount recognised in total comprehensive income 18.68 1192
(ii) Change in the present value of obligation:
Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 77.62 68.05
Current service cost 1492 13.29
Interest cost 563 4.93
Benefirs paid (3.93) (2.35)
Acruacial (gain) (1.87) (6.30)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 92.37 77.62
The Company expects to contribute INR 19.82 Lakh (31 March 2022 : INR 16.95 lakh) to gratuity fund m the next financial year
(iif) Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income
Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumption > =
Actuarial (gain) from change i assumption (170} (1.67)
Actuarml (gun) lrom expenence adjustment (©.17) (h03)
‘Total actuarial (gain)/loss {1.87) (6.30)
(iv) Actuarial assumptions
Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.50 " per annum 7.25 % per annum
Rate of increase in compensation levels 6.00 % per annum 6.00 % per annum
Mortaliry LALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14
Retirement age 38 Years 58 Years
(v) Sensitivity analysis for gratity liability
Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Impact of change in discount rate
Present value of obliganon at the end of the year 92.37 77.62
- Impact due to increase of 1% (7.64) ©.78)
- Impact due to decrease of 1 % 8.82 7.88
Impact of change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 92.37 77.62
- Impact due to increase of 1% 8.86 790
- Impact due to dec (7.81) (6.92)

rses above have been deren
wering at the end of the reporting period. The se

one another.

ned based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
vity amalyses are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isols

(vi) Maturity profile of defined benefit

Beyond 3 y

Description For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within next 12 months 421 351
Benween 1- 1424 1048
73.92 63.63

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 13 years (31 March 2022: 16 years).
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Fair value disclosures
Fair values hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are divided into three Levels of a fur value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based
on the observability of sigmificant inputs to the measurement, as follows:
Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for fimancial mstruments.
Level 2: The fair value of financial mstruments that are not traded m an active market is determmed using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market dara rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates.
Level 3: [f onc or more of the significant inputs 15 not based on observable market data, the mstrument 1s included i level 3.
Fi ial instr t ed at fair value - recurring fair value measurements
The Company does not have any financial instruments which are measured at fair value cither through statement of profit and loss or through other comprehensive mecome.
Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed s as follows:
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars Level = e = - -

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Trade receivables Level 3 5,091.25 3091.25 +,643.81 4,643.81
Cash and cash equivalents Level 3 30494 30494 1,641.72 1641.72
Other bank balances Level 3 881.42 881.42 380.73 386.73
Other financial assets Level 3 49.63 49.65 62.16 62.16
‘Total financial assets 6,327.26 6,327.26 6,734.42 6,734.42
Financial liabilities
Borrowings Level 3 9,058.39 9,038.39 11,308.32 11,308.32
“I'rade payable Level 3 10,416.69 10,416.69 6,378.07 6,378.07
Other financial habilities Level 3 H19.33 409.33 619.33 619.33
‘Total financial liabilities 19,884.41 19,884.41 18,305.72 18,305.72

The management assessed that fair values of current loans, current financial assets, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, short term borrowings, trade payables

s approximate their respective carrying amounts lasgely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The Fair value of the financial assets and

and other current financial liabilit
Tiabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing partics, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following

methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Long-term fixed-rate receivables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, individual creditworthiness of the customer and other market risk factors.

The fair values of the Company’s fixed mterest-bearing loans and receivables are determined by applying discounted cash lows (‘DCI) method, using discount rate that reflects the
issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2023 was assessed to be insignificant.

All the long term borrowmng facilities availed by the Company are variable rate facilities which are subject to changes in underlying interest rate indices. Further, the credit spread on these
facilitics are subject to change with changes in Company's creditworthi The management believes that the current rate of interest on these loans are m close approximation from

market rates applicable to the Company. Therefore, the management estimates that the fair value of these borrowings are approximale to their respective carrying values.

Financial risk management

Financial instruments by category

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets
T'rade recewvables - - 3,091.25 - - +4,643.81
Cash and cash equivalents - - 304.94 - - 1,641.72
Other bank balances - - 881.42 - - 386.73
Other financial assets - - 49.65 - - 62.16
Total - - 6,327.26 - - 6,734.42
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 9,058.39 - - 11,308.32
Trade payable - - 10416.69 - - 6,378.07
Other financial habilities - - 409.33 - - 619.33
Total - - 19,884.41 - - 18,305.72

Risk Management
The Company’s activitics expose it to market risk, iquidity risk and credit nsk. The Company's Board of Dircctors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial

statements.
Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit nisk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Ageing analys Bank deposits, diversification of asset base, credit limits and collateral.
receivables, financial assets measured
atamortised cost
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit lines and borrowing facilities
forecasts
Market risk - foreign exchange Recognised financial assets and Cash flow forccasting Forward contract/hedging, if required
labilitics not denominated in Indian
Market risk - interest rate Long-term and short-term borrowings| Sensitivity analysis Negotiation of terms that reflect the market factors
at variable rates

The Company’s risk management 1s carried out by a central treasury department (of the Company) under policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors provides
principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, intecest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

T,
pmSSERE,
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A) Credit risk

a

b

=

—
=

B

a)

-

exposed to this risk for various financial instruments, for example by granting

Credit risk 1s the nisk that a counterpa
loans and recervables to customers, placing deposits, ete. The Compar

fails to discharge an abligation to the Company. The Company 1s
maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the caerying amount of following types of financal assets.

-cashand ¢
- trade receivables,

wl recevables carmied at amortised cost, and
- deposits with banks

sh equivalents,

- loans

Credit risk management

‘The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on mternal credit rating system, continuously monitoring defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either individually
or by the company, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls, Internal credit rating is performed for cach class of financial instruments with different characteristics.
gns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

The Company as:

A Low
B: Medwm
C: High
sets under credit risk —
Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
A: Low Other financial assets 49.65 62.16
Cash and cash equivalents 30494 1,641.72
Other bank balances 881.42 386.73
‘I'rade receivables 5,091.25 +4,643.81
C: High "Trade receivables 13.48 13.48

Caash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
Credit tisk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifymg bank deposits and accounts in different banks.

Treade receirables

tems that are configured to define credit limits of customers, thereby, limiting the credit nisk to pre-
for amounts receivable that become past due.

he credit-worthiness of the debtors through mternal
ses increase m credit risk on an ongoing bas

“The Company closely monitors

calculated amounts. The Company ass

Other finandial assets measured al amortised cost
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost includes security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets
such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal control system in place ensure the amounts are within defined limits.

1s managed by menitoring the recoverability of

Expected credit losses
Trade receirables
on teade receivables using a simplified approach and uses historical information to arrive at loss percentage relevant to cach

lifetime expected credit los

The Company recogniscs
category of trade receivables.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period:
P T
Recongiliation of loss allowance ‘_'a'k
receivables
Loss allowance on 01 April 2021 9,64
Less: Changes i loss allowances due to utilisation =
3.84

Add: Changes in loss allowances due to creation

Loss allowance on 31 March 2022 13.48
Changes in loss allowances due to utilisation z
Add: Changes in loss allowances due to creation

Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 13.48

Other fincniial assets measnred al amortised cost

The Company provides for expected credit losses on loans and advances by assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit lo Since this category includes loans
and receivables of varied natures and purpose, there is no trendl that the Company can draws to apply consistently to entire population For such financial assets, the Company's policy is to
provides for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provides for lifetime expected credit losses upon significant increase in credit risk. The Company does not have

any expected loss based impairment recognised on such assets considering their low credit risk nature.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securitics and the avaihability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to
meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by mamtaining availability under committed facilities.

of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the
in major currencics and considering the level of

alents on the b

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equ
liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flov
liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilitics at the end of the reporting period:

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

3.351.30 6,415.51

{xpiring within onc year (cash credit and other facilitics)

“xpiring beyond one year (bank loans)

5,351.30 6,415.51
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b) Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities mto relevant maturity groupings based on their conteactual maturitics for all non-derivative financial liabihtics.
‘e amounts disclosed in the table ace the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months cqual their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not sigmificant.
31 March 2023 Less than 1 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 Total

year years
Non-derivative
Borrowings 2,067.76 3,502.32 2,533.064 953467 9,058.39
‘Trade payable 10,416.69 - 10,416.69
Other financial liabilities 409.33 - - - 409.33
Total 12,893.78 3,502.32 2,533.64 954.67 19,884.41
31 March 2022 Less than 1 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 Total
year years

Non-derivative
Borrowings 1,386.26 2,127.95 2015.36 5,778.75 11,308.32
Treade payable 6,378.07 = - 6,378.07
Other financial labilities 619.33 - - - 619.33
Total 8,383.66 2,127.95 2,015.36 5,178.75 18,305.72

C) Market risk

a) Foreign currency risk
“The Company is exposed to forcign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the US Dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from recogniscd assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional currency.
Foreign currency risk exposure in foreign currency:
‘The Company exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed m INR, are as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022

UsD UsD

Financial assets
Trade receivables 62243 969.24
Financial liabilities
“I'rade payables 377.67 373.52
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 244.76 595.72
Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated fimancial instruments.
Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
USD sensitivity
INR/USD- increase by 4.88% (previous year: 4.64%0)* 11.94 27.64
INR/USD- decrease by 4.88% (previous year: +.64%0)* (1L.94) (27.64)
# Holding all other rariables constant

b) Interest rate risk

i) Liabilities
The Company’s policy is lo minimisc interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-teem financing: The Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings
at variable interest rates. The Company’s investments in fixed deposits all pay fixed mterest rates.
Interest riite tisk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:
Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Variable rate borrowing 9,058.39 11,308.32
Fixed rate borrowing - -
Total borrowings 9,058.39 11,308.32
Sensitivity
Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes m interest rates.
Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Interest sensitivity*
Intcrest rates — increase by 100 bps (previous year: 100 bps)* 90.58 113.08
Interest mtes — decrease by 100 bps (previous year: 100 bps)* (90.58) (113.08)
* Holding afl other rartables constant

ii) Assets

‘The Company’s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate dep

carrying amount nor the

D) Price risk
The Company does not have any significant investments in equity instruments which

osits. They are therefore no

future cash Aows will fluctuate because of a change n market innterest rates.

create an exposure to price risk.

t subject to nterest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the
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Capital management

The Company’ s capital management objectives are
- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue
- to provide an adequate return to sharcholders

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of cquity less cash and cash equivalents

s a going concern

wted on the face of balance sheet.

s pres

Management assesses the Company
subordination levels of the Compa

capital cequirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes mto account the
s various chsses of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in cconomic conditions and

the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, return capital to

sharcholders, 1ssue new shares, or sell assets 1o reduce debr.

Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
‘Total borrowings 9,058.39 11,308.32
‘Total equity +,382.00 2,776.10
Debt to equity ratio 2.07 4.07

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Ind AS 1157), establishes a framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised and
requires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from customer contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised through a 5-step

approach:

(i) Tdentify the contract(s) with customer;

(it) [dentify separate performance obligations in the contract;

(itf) Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and
(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Disaggregation of revenue

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

Sale of products 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from customers (transferred at point of time) 29,012.32 22,428.04
Total revenue from contracts with customers 29,012.32 22,428.04
[ndia 26,936.51 20,273.53
Outside India 2,075.81 2,154.51
Total revenue from contracts with customers 29,012.32 22,428.04
‘Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time 29,012.32 22.428.04
Total revenue from contracts with customers 29,012.32 22,428.04

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

Ind AS 115 also requires disclosure of ‘revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period” and ‘revenuc recognised in
the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous periods. Same has been disclosed as below:

Description Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period 2,238.43 33.92

Revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous periods - -

Total 2,238.43 33.92

Contract balances

Description As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Non-current Current Non-current Current

‘Trade receivables 5,091.25 4,643.81

Contract liabilities related to sale of goods

Advance from customers 103.19 - 2,238.43

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 days to 90 days.

Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received from customer to supply goods.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with Contract price

Description Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Contract price 29,020.18 22,519.93

Less: Discount, rebates, credits etc. (7.86) (91.89)

Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss 29,012.32 22,428.04

Performance obligations

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the product and payment is generally due within 7 days to 90 days from delivery.

(Vhis space has been left blank infentionally)
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48 Share based payments
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Scheme details

The Holding Company has Imployee Stock Option Scheme i.e. "Amber Enterprises India Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2017" ("Plan"), under which the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, at its discretion, may geant share options of the [olding Company to eligible employees of the Holding Company or to the employees of any of its subsidiary
company. Under this plan, the options shall vest not earlier than 1 (One) year and not later than maximum Vesting Period of 5 (I'ive) years from the date of Grant. Vesting of Options

would be subject to continued employment with the Company and thus the Options would vest essentially on passage of time.

Number of options Grant date Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price Fair value on grant date
outstanding

3,750 13-May-22 12-May-23 3 years from date of vesting 2,879.45 1,372.00

3,750 13-May-22 12-May-24 3 years from date of vesting 2,879.45 1,533.90

3,750 13-May-22 12-May-25 3 years from date of vesting 2,879.45 1,674.00

3,750 13-May-22 12-May-26 3 years from date of vesting 2,879.45 1,825.20
Compensation expenses arising on account of the share based payments

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Lixpenses arising from equity — settled share-based payment transactions 104.29 -
Total 104.29 -

Fair value on the grant date

The fair value at grant date is determined using “Black Scholes Pricing Model” which takes into account the exercise price, term of the option, share price at grant date and expected price

volatility of the underlying shares, expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.
The following inputs were used to determine the fair value for options granted on 13 May 2022,

Description Vest 1 Vest 2 Vest 3 Vest 4

Number of options outstanding 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00
Grant date 13-May-22 13-May-22 13-May-22 13-May-22
Financial year of vesting 2023-24 to 2026-27 2024-25 to 2027-28 2025-26 to 2028-29 2026-27 to 2029-30
Share price on grant date (in INR) 3,379.45 3,379.45 3,379.45 3,379.45
Fxpected life (in years) 2.5 35 4.5 5.5
Price volatility of company's share * 47.10% 43,70 41.90% 41.90%%
Risk free interest rate 6.70% 7.10% 7.20% 7.40%
Excreise price (in INR) 2,879.45 2,879.45 2,879.45 2,879.45
Dividend yield 0.29% 0.29% 0.29% 0.29%
Iair value of option (in INR) 1,372.00 1,533.90 1,674.00 1,825.20

* "The measure of volatility used is the annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return of stock over the expected lives of different vests, prior to grant date.

Volatility has been caleulated based on the daily closing market price of the Company's stock on BSIE over these years.

Movement in share options during the year

Description

Number of options

Weighted average exercise
price

Outstanding as on 01 April 2021

Options granted during the year

Options forfeited/lapsed/expired during the year
Options exercised during the year

Options outstanding as at 31 March 2022
Options granted during the year

Options forfeited /lapsed /expired during the year
Options exercised during the year

Options outstanding as at 31 March 2023 "#

Lxercisable at the end of the period.

15,000

15,000

2,879.45

2,879.45

* The weighted average remaining contractual life of the share options outstanding at the end of year is 4.61 years.
# "T'he weighted average fair value of share options outstanding at the end of year is INR 1,601.28 per share option.
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Corporate social responsibility expenses

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companics (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, every
company having net worth of INR 500 crore or more, or turnover of INR 1,000 crore or more, or net profit of INR 5 crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year
shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board consisting of three or more directors, out of which at least one director shall be an independent director.
"I'he Board of every company referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, shall ensure that the company spends, in every financial year, at least two per
cent of the average net profits of the company made during the theee immediately preceding financial years, The provision of aforesaid scction are not applicable to the Company for
the period ended 31 March 2023.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing of components of consumer durable products. Basis the nature of Company’s business and operations, the Company has one
operating segment i.e. "manufacture of components of consumer durable products” for which information is reviewed by the Managing Director identified as the Chicf Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) to allocate resources and assess performance. Henee, the Company has only one reportable segment as per the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating
Segments'. Majority of the revenue is derived from one geography and one external customer who individually constitutes more than 10% of the Company's total revenue,
amounting to INR 5,736.70 lakh (31 March 2022: INR 4,095.14 lakh from onc external customers, who individually constitutes more than 107 of the Company's total revenue).

Additional regulatory information
(i) "The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property. under the
Prohibition of Benami Property ‘I'ransactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) The following table summarises the transactions with the companics struck off under section 248 of the Companics Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 for the
year ended as at 31 March 2023

Name of struck off company etk tran:z;:]:i::sywith stmciciolt Balam:; (])\:;:::1“;6;;% a5 01| Relationship with the Struck off company, if any
Container Corporation of India Limited Professional services availed 0.45 External vendor
Sumitron Exports Pyt.Lid. Professional services availed 0.46 Eixternal vendor
Star Wire India Led. Professional services availed 0.03 External vendor

(iit) ‘The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
(iv) "The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
pany y P s 4 B 4
Intermediary shall:
1) dircctly or indicectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiarics) or
y ¥ P y ¥ pany
rovide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
p Y 8! > Ly

(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

() directly or indircctly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income "I'ax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(viii) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

The Company has appointed independent consultants for conducting a transfer pricing study to determine whether the international transactions with associate enterprises and
specified domestic transactions were undertaken at “arm’s length basis”. Adjustments, if any atising from the transfer pricing study shall be accounted for as and when the study is
completed. The management confirms that all international transactions with associate enterprises and specified domestic transactions are undertaken at negotiated contracted prices
on usual commercial terms.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of D
Chartered Accountants PICL (India) Private Limited
— \
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